
abc 
 
 

Agenda 

 

Extraordinary Meeting of the Council 
 

Time and Date 
2.00 pm on Tuesday, 18th September, 2012 
 
Place 
Council Chamber - Council House 
 

 
 
Public Business 
 

1. Apologies   
 

2. Declarations of Interests   
 

3. Conferring the Title of Honorary Alderman and Woman  (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 Report of the Director of Customer and Workforce Services 
 

Private Business 
  

Nil 
 

Bev Messinger, Director of Customer and Workforce Services, Council House Coventry 
 
Monday, 10 September 2012 
 
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Carolyn 
Sinclair/Suzanne Bennett 024 7683 3166/3072 
 
 
Membership: Councillors F Abbott, N Akhtar, M Ali, A Andrews, M Auluck, S Bains, L Bigham, 
J Blundell, K Caan, D Chater, J Clifford, G Crookes (Deputy Chair), G Duggins, C Fletcher, 
K Foster, D Galliers, D Gannon, A Gingell, M Hammon, L Harvard, P Hetherton, D Howells, 
J Innes, L Kelly, D Kershaw, T  Khan, A Khan, R Lakha, R Lancaster, J Lepoidevin, A Lucas, 
K Maton, J McNicholas, C Miks, K Mulhall, J Mutton, M Mutton, H Noonan, J O'Boyle, 
E Ruane, R Sandy, T Sawdon (Chair), H S Sehmi, B Singh, D Skinner, T Skipper, H Sweet, 
K Taylor, R Thay, S Thomas, P Townshend, S Walsh, D Welsh and A Williams 
 
 

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms 
 
If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR it you would like this information in another format or 

language please contact us. 
 

Carolyn Sinclair/Suzanne Bennett  
024 7683 3166/3072 

Public Document Pack



Minicom: (024) 7683 3029 
Fax: (024) 7683 3266 
 

PLEASE NOTE: 

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's 
internet site.  At the start of the meeting, the Lord Mayor will confirm if all or part 
of the meeting is being filmed.  The images and sound recording may be used 
for training purposes within the Council. Generally, the public seating areas are 
not filmed. 

 However, by entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you 
are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and 
sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. If you have any 
queries regarding this, please contact the Governance Services Officer at the 
meeting. 

 



abc Public report
Council Report

 
 
  

 
 

 

 

Extraordinary Meeting of the City Council 18 September 2012 
 
Name of Cabinet Member:  
Community Safety and Equalities: Councillor Philip Townshend  
 
Director Approving Submission of the report: 
Director of Customer and Workforce Services  
 
Ward(s) affected: 
All 
 
Title: 
Conferring the title of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman 
 
 
Is this a key decision? 
No 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The Council approved a revised Protocol for conferring the title of Honorary Alderman or 
Alderwoman on former Councillors at their meeting on 18 September 2012. This Report sets out 
the first set of nominations for Honorary Aldermen and Honorary Alderwomen.  Four nominations 
have been received and are presented for approval in this report. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. It is recommended that Council confers the title of Honorary Alderman/Alderwoman on 
each of the following nominations: 
i) Trevor Webb OBE 
ii) Joan Wright 
iii) David Batten 
iv) John Gazey 

 
 
List of Appendices included: 

1. Revised Protocol for conferring of Honorary Aldermen and Alderwomen (as presented to 
Council for approval on 18 September 2012) 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

 2 

Other useful background papers: 
None 
Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
No  
 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?  
No 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 3 

Report title: Conferring the title of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman  
 
1. Context  
 
1.1 The Council approved a revised Protocol for conferring the title of Honorary Alderman or 

Alderwoman on former Councillors at its meeting on 18 September 2012, attached at 
Appendix 1. The title of Honorary Alderman/woman can be conferred at extraordinary 
Council meetings throughout the year. Members will vote on each nomination.  
Nominations need to be agreed by at least two thirds of the Members present. 

 
2. Options Considered and Recommended Proposals 
 
2.1 Four nominations have been received which meet the criteria as set out in the Protocol 

within Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution (a copy of this is attached in Appendix 1).  A 
summary of each nomination is set out below.  During the Council meeting, there will be a 
Proposer and a Seconder for each nomination.  The Proposer and Seconder will each 
make short speeches and the Council will then vote on the nomination.  A nomination 
needs to be agreed by at least two thirds of members present and voting. For all 
nominations that are agreed, this will be followed by a short acceptance speech by the 
Honorary Alderman/woman.  
 

2.2 Nominated Honorary Alderman: Trevor Webb OBE  
 

 Mr Webb served as a Member of the Council for 17 years in total between 1973 and 1990.  
During that time he was Chair of Finance Committee and a long serving member on 
Planning Committee.  He received his honour from HM The Queen in 1988 in recognition of 
his duty to the public and political services.    

 
2.3 Nominated Honorary Alderwoman: Joan Wright 

 
 Mrs Wright was a Member of the Council for 16 years in total between 1986 and 2002.  

During which time Mrs Wright was a leading Councillor on issues relating to social services 
and the environment.  She was Lord Mayor during the Millennium year of 1999-2000. 

 
2.4 Nominated Honorary Alderman: David Batten 

  
 Mr Batten was a Member of the City Council for 18 years serving Westwood Ward from 

1990 until 2008.  During that time he chaired numerous Committees and Panels and in 
particular Cabinet Member for City Development, as well as undertaking the role of Lord 
Mayor in 2007-2008.   
 

2.5 Nominated Honorary Alderman: John Gazey 
 
John Gazey was a Member of the Council representing the citizens of Bablake Ward for a 
total of 23 years from 1987 to 1996 and 1998 to 2012.  During this lengthy service he 
became Coventry’s Lord Mayor in 2004-2005 and served on a wide range of Committees.  
 

 
3. Results of consultation undertaken 
 
3.1 In preparing this report, consultation has taken place with the proposers and proposed 

Aldermen/women, as well as with the relevant Cabinet Member, the Lord Mayor and 
Council Leader.  

Page 3



 

 4 

 
4. Timetable for implementing this decision 
 
4.1    The conferring of the title of Honorary Alderman/woman will take effect immediately upon 

approval by Council. 
 
 
5. Comments from Director of Finance and Legal Services 
 
5.1 Financial implications 
  

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

5.2 Legal implications 
  
 This report implements the Council’s Protocol for appointing Honorary Aldermen and 

Alderwomen.  The Protocol is in accordance with the provisions for such appointments, as 
set out in Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
 
6. Other implications 
 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 

priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)? 

 
 Not applicable   
 
6.2 How is risk being managed? 
 
 Not applicable. 
 
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 
 
 To confer the esteemed title of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman on any former 

Councillor is a prestigious honour that will have a positive impact on the City Council and 
the City of Coventry. The details of the nominations will refer to the nature of the eminent 
services provided by that former Member and to recognise the contributions they have 
made.  

 
6.4 Equalities / EIA  

Each nomination for the position of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman is considered on its 
individual merits. Nominations are received in accordance with the protocol, which is 
applicable to any former Member. 

   
6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment 

None  
 
6.6 Implications for partner organisations? 

None   
 
 

Page 4



 

 5 

Report author(s): 
 
Name and job title: Jane Barlow, Lord Mayor’s Supervisor 
 
Directorate: Customer and Workforce Services 
 
Tel and email contact: 024 7683 3047    jane.barlow @coventry.gov.uk  
Enquiries should be directed to the above person. 
 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Directorate or 
organisation 

Date 
doc 
sent 
out 

Date 
response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors: 
 

    

Helen Abraham Assistant Director 
(Democratic Services) 

CWS 05/9/12 05/09/12 

Hugh Peacocke Governance Services 
Manager 

CWS 05/9/12 06/09/12 

Suzanne Bennett Governance Services 
Team Leader 

CWS 05/9/12 05/09/12 

     

Names of approvers for 
submission:  
(officers and members) 

    

Finance: Kathryn Sutherland 
 

Lead Accountant Business 
Partnering, CS Finance 

F&LS 05/9/12 06/09/12 

Legal: Christine Forde Assistant Director  
(Legal Services) 

F&LS 05/9/12 05/09/12 

Director: Bev Messinger Director  CWS 05/9/12 06/09/12 

Members: Councillor John 
Mutton 

Cabinet Member 
Policy, Leadership and 
Governance 

 05/9/12 06/09/12 

Members: Councillor Philip 
Townshend 

Cabinet Member 
Community Safety and 
Equalities 

 05/9/12 06/09/12 

 
 

This report is published on the council's website: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/moderngov  
 

Page 5



 

 6 

Appendix 1  
Revised Protocol for conferring the title of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman 

1. Procedure 

a) The title of Honorary Alderman/woman will only be conferred and entered into the 
Roll of Aldermen/women in accordance with the Council’s agreed Protocol. 

b) Any name put forward must be proposed in writing by a serving Member of the 
Council and seconded in writing by at least one other serving Member of the 
Council.  Nominations must be submitted to both the Chief Executive and the Lord 
Mayor.  

c) Nominations will be considered and the title of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman 
will be conferred at a specially convened meeting of the Council.  The title will be 
conferred by a resolution passed by not less than two thirds of members present and 
voting. 

d) Nominations may, in addition to this, be considered at a prior ordinary Council 
meeting, and the nomination approved in principle by a resolution comprising a 
majority vote. If nominations are considered at an ordinary meeting, it is proposed 
that the specially convened meeting may be held immediately after this ordinary 
meeting or at a future meeting, subject to the appropriate notice of the special 
meeting having been given 

 

2. Qualifications Required for Enrolment 

a) The Council may, in accordance with Section 249 of the Local Government Act 
1972, and the provisions of this Protocol, confer the title of “Honorary Alderman” 
or “Honorary Alderwoman”. 

b) An Honorary Alderman/Alderwoman shall enjoy only those rights or privileges 
conferred by Section 249 of the Act and this Protocol. 

c) The Director of Customer and Workforce Services shall keep a roll to be called 
“The Roll of Honorary Aldermen/Alderwomen” of those who have had this title 
conferred on them.   

d) A person shall be deemed eligible to be enrolled as an Honorary 
Alderman/Alderwoman provided that the person meets the following requirements: 

• is not a serving Member of the Council 

• has served as a Member of the Council for at least 15 years in total 
(continuously or non-continuously)  

• has given eminent service to the Council during that period. 

 

3. Method of Enrolment  

a) No person who has the above qualifications shall be enrolled automatically as an 
Honorary Alderman/Alderwoman but only in accordance with the procedure set 
out above. 

b) Formal conferring of the title of Honorary Aldermen/Alderwomen shall be by a 
resolution of the Council passed by not less than two thirds of the Members 
present and voting thereon at a meeting of the Council specially convened for the 
purpose with notice of the object. 

Page 6



 

 7 

4.  Withdrawal of Title 

a) The Council may withdraw the title of Honorary Alderman/Alderwoman and the 
attached rights and privileges.  Such withdrawal of the title shall be by way of 
formal motion to a meeting of the full Council, (the summons to which contains 
special notice that such withdrawal is proposed and the reason therefore) and 
subsequent resolution of the Council passed by not less than two thirds of the 
Members present and voting thereon at the meeting of the Council.   

 

5. Privileges 

An Honorary Alderman/Alderwoman shall be entitled to the following rights and 
privileges: 

• To enjoy the courtesy title of Honorary Alderman or Alderwoman and to be so 
addressed. 

• To provide a badge or emblem to Honorary Aldermen/Alderwomen, and to 
wear such badge or emblem on civic occasions. 

• To receive a copy of each Council summons and a copy of the Members’ 
Handbook and to be included within the Members’ Handbook. 

• To receive a framed certificate to commemorate their appointment. 

• To enter their name into "The Roll of Honorary Aldermen/Alderwomen". 

• To receive invitations to civic and social events to which Members of the 
Council are invited as determined by the Lord Mayor. 

• To walk in civic procession in a position immediately behind serving Members. 

• To enjoy such other privileges as the Council may confer upon them from time 
to time. 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Conferring the Title of Honorary Alderman and Woman

